Avatar NX Enhanced Care Management Training Guide

Sacramento County Avatar NX Training and Support





Purpose of this Training Guide:

Users must attend Avatar Enhanced Care Management (ECM) Provider Training before gaining access to the forms and reports shown in this guide. Enhanced Care Management is Medi-Cal managed care benefit that addresses clinical and non-clinical needs of high-need individuals through coordination of services and comprehensive case management.

ECM Providers are community-based entities with experience and expertise providing intensive, inperson care management services to individuals in one or more of the ECM Populations of Focus.

This guide is designed to be an additional tool for Avatar users who have attended Avatar ECM Training. The Training Guide may change as Avatar trainings are updated. If you have any additional questions please contact Avatar Support at 916-876-5806 or Avatar@Saccounty.net.





Table of Contents

Admission
Admission Corrections
Attending Practitioner
Financial Eligibility
* Managed Care Plan Guarantors:
Diagnosis17
Voiding a Diagnosis19
Progress Note Entry
Accessing a Draft Progress Note
Append Progress Notes
Documentation for Shared Clients
Problem List
Client Plan
Client Plan Report
Client Safety Plan49
Client Safety Plan Report
Corrections Process
ECM Pre-Billing Report
Editing and Deleting Services:53
Orphaned Progress Notes:53
Tools for locating Orphaned Progress Notes54
Attaching a Service to an Orphaned Note56
Voiding a Progress Note57
Discharge61





Admission

Admission Information

You will not be able to add any documentation into the client's chart until they have been admitted into your program. Once the client has been admitted that will create an open episode in your program. From there you will be able to add progress notes, client plans, and scanned documents. If the client has an existing Avatar ID you will want to use that ID to do the Admission, do not create a new Avatar ID for the client. If the client's name is misspelled or if they have had a name change, that can be fixed on the Update Client Data form.

Admission Form

- 1. Search for the **Admission** form in the "What can I help you find?" search box and click to open.
- Enter the client's information, you will need three fields completed to activate the "Search" button. Make sure to do a thorough search so that a duplicate client is not created. Additional pieces of information that can be used to search your client are date of birth, social security number, and Avatar ID number.
- 3. Click the Search button. Everyone meeting the criteria you entered will populate. If you see your client listed below double click on their name to enter a new admission for them. If they are not listed click on the "New Client" button. Make sure to enter the client's social security number and date of birth in the search criteria before clicking "New Client". If the client's name is misspelled you run the risk of creating a duplicate if the search was not thorough.

ome 2	Select Client >							
lient S	Search							
Last Nam	*		First Name		See			
Test			Kyle		Male * ~			
Social Sec	curity Number		Date of Birth					
123-45	5-5555		06/02/2000					
Assigned	UD		Alim		Alias (Additional Text)	Alias (Addational	Alias (Additional Text)	
		Oar						
Info	Search Score	Quer		Family Number	Date Of Sirth	Social Security Number	Policy Number	
anfo	Search Concernent Score	Corr	5	Family Number				
anfo		Cor		Family Number	Date Of Birth	Social Security Number		
info	65	Ger		Family Number	Date Of Birth 06:02/2000	Social Security Number 619-19-4923		
anfo Info Infi Infi Info Info Info Info Info Info Info Info	65 65	Corr		Family Number	Date Of Birth 04:02/2000 06:02/2000	Social Security Number 619-19-423 576-87-4136		
info	65 65 65			Family Number	Date Of Birth 04:02/2000 04:02/2000 04:02/2000	Bootal Security Number 619-19-4923 57687-4136 867-31-282P		
info Mili Mili Mili Mili Mili Mili Mili Mil	65 65 65 65			Family Number	Date Of Birth Birt2/2000 04/02/2000 04/02/2000 04/02/2000 04/02/2000	Social Security Number 8 (9-10-4023 579-87-4136 987-91-262 9022-8-16P		





4. Any information you entered on the Search screen will populate into the form. If this is a new client the top header will say New Client and will generate an Avatar ID for the client. The new client will not be saved in Avatar until you click the Submit button.

atar' NX myDay	CAREQUALITY Client Admin Client Ap	pointment Client Clinical Client Notes Client	Financial Client Medical		Customize C
•	A NEW Cleart(1 Form)				
han	NEW Client	-			
Thelp you find?	New Client (788475738) Proferred Name: -	Ip 1: Admission Date: -	HE -, WE - Location -	DKP -	Alargies (3)
int Scela	Contraction of the second seco	Administra Later - Atta, Pract.: -	Phone Pt -		
-					
	_				
. 1	ADMISSION				submit Discard Add to Fi
he	ADMISSION				
	Admission Demographics			0	
	Other Client Data	Episode Number		Admitting Practitioner 9	
192	Inpatient/Partial/Day Treatment				
Clients	Online Documentation				
JR (788475649)		Client Name * TESTXYLE		Attending Practitioner	
(788475890) 188475570				Attending Practitioner	
88475684		Sex *			
(768475588)		 Female Mail 	e O Unknown		
884756130		the Second Second		Practitioner Type	
H4757215		Date Of Birth	- 00		
664756150		06/02/2000		• 11	
T (789475344)		Age		Facility Chart Number	
(788475719)		1.21			
788475591)		Admission Date *		12	
MY (780475644)			- 6 6	Social Security Number 12	
		5		123455555 123-43-3333	
LUAM		Admission Time *		Client's Uving Arrangements - 13	
			Convertilities H C M C AM/PM	Contract Con	
		Proson 6		Disposition of Admission (For Access Team Use Only)	
		Program *		Select	
		Type Of Admission *			
		Select.	3.5	*1	
		Source Of Admission 8			
_		Select	100		
of Chevis		1 Sector			

- 5. Enter the Admission Date and Time.
- 6. Enter the **Program** for the admission. The programs listed will be programs within your system code.
- 7. Indicate the **Type of Admission**. Providers should use the option for Service Provider.
- 8. The **Source of Admission** is not required, however your agency may require that field be entered.
- 9. Enter the **Admitting Practitioner**. The client will populate on that practitioner's My Client widget.
- 10. The **Attending Practitioner** is not required, however entering an Attending Practitioner will allow the client to populate on the Attending Practitioner's My Client widget.
- 11. A **Practitioner Type** and **Facility Chart Number** are not required but can be entered if your agency uses these fields.
- 12. **Social Security Number** is not required, however this will be required for billing purposes. If the client does is not able to give you a social security number you can enter all 0's. This will still need to be in the correct format xxx-xx-xxxx.
- 13. Indicate the client's Living Arrangements.





Received Copy Of Client Rights		Advanced Directive		
⊖ Yes	O No	⊖ Yes	O No	
Advanced Directive Note				
				8
Admission Note				P
				2

- 14. The remaining fields below are not required but can be entered if your agency requires.
- 15. On the upper left hand side of the form are the different pages of the Admission form. Click on the demographics page.

		1 242		1000	
(What can I help you find?) Absend Clent Starth	Anno Chert (1984/15/198) Proternet Nanc:	Ex 1 : Advision Date - Atts, Pract: -	HE - WE - Location - Phone # -	DKP-	Abrain (3
Clients Forms • Favorites	ADMISSION				Skinit Deart Add is favories
cent Forms +	Admission Demographics	· ·			
rol Panel	Other Client Data	Client Last Name	Client's Ho	me Phone	
	Inpatient/Partial/Day Treatment	TEST			
My Clients	Online Documentation	Client First Name	Client's Wo	ork Phone	
ENDJOHN JR (786475649)		KYLE			
ST,ABIGAIL (7884756PO		Client Middle Name	Primary La	nguage	
EST, AMELIA (196475570)		5	Select		* *

- 16. The fields on this page are not marked red and required, however you will want to fill out as much demographic information as you can.
 - a. Important fields to take note of on the Demographics page:
 - i. Preferred Name: The client's first and last name must be their legal name, but if they prefer to go by a different name it can be entered here and will populate at the top of the client's chart once submitted. This is not a searchable field.
 - ii. Client's Address: This field is not marked red and required, however it is required for billing purposes. Enter the client's full address, if they are homeless enter HOMELESS in the "Client's Address-Street" field and enter your agencies zip code, city, and state.
 - iii. Alias: There are ten Alias fields available. If your client goes by any other name including a nickname, preferred name, or maiden name enter them in the Alias fields.
 - iv. Marital Status: Indicate your client's current marital status in the drop down.
 - v. E-mail: If your client has an e-mail address, this should be captured in this field.
- 17. Once you have filled out the demographics section to the best of your ability click "Submit" to save.





Admission Corrections

Once the form has been submitted you will not be able to delete the entry or make edits to the date or program. If the admission date or program was entered incorrectly you are able to contact <u>Avatar@Saccounty.net</u> and we can make the correction. If the admission was done in error, such as for the wrong client, please contact your Sacramento County Contract Monitor to request the change. If there is documentation in the episode further approval may be required. Make sure to encrypt any emails that are sent with client information such as the client name, SSN, or Avatar ID number.

If the name was misspelled or any of their demographics entered in error such as SSN, DOB, phone number, or address, that can be fixed in the "**Update Client Data**" form.

Attending Practitioner

Additional Information

Clients receiving ECM services are required to have an ECM Lead Care Coordinator assigned to them for the duration of their episode. Attending Practitioner is the form used to add and update the Lead Care Coordinator information. This will also assign the client to the user's My Clients list. Only one ECM Lead Care Coordinator can be assigned at a time.

- 1. Open the Attending Practitioner form in Avatar
- 2. Select the ECM episode from the Episode pre-display.





me: RUSSELL TEST : 788475841 x: Male ite of Birth: 05/05/1975	5			
Date Of Assignment	Time Of Assignment	Attending Clinician	Staff, Private Covering	Date Of Entry
9/15/2022	09:57 AM	015252	ECM Lead Care Coordinator	09/15/2022
9/15/2022	10:08 AM	010562	ECM Lead Care Coordinator	09/15/2022
_				

3. If there has been an ECM Lead Care Coordinator previously entered you will see a predisplay of the previously entered ECM Lead Care Coordinators. Click Add to open the form to update the record.

ATTENDING PRACTIT	TIONER		Submit Discard	Add to Favorites
Attending Clinician Assignment Form	~			
Online Documentation	Date Of Assignment *		Attending Practitioner *	
	09/20/2022		FOUR TRAINER (010562)	
	Time Of Assignment 09:43 AM	■ H 🗘 M 🗘 AM/PM 🗘	Practitioner Type ECM Lead Care Coordinator V	

- 4. Enter the "Date of Assignment" of when the client was assigned to the Avatar user
- 5. In the "Attending Practitioner" field, enter the name of the Avatar user who will be the ECM Lead Care Coordinator for the client
- 6. Enter the time of the Assignment, you can click the Current Time button to enter in the current time.
- 7. Select ECM Lead Care Coordinator from the Practitioner Type drop down.
- 8. Click submit to save the information.





Financial Eligibility

Financial Eligibility Information:

The Financial Eligibility form is where you enter the guarantors that will be paying for your client' services. Medi-Cal eligibility must be verified each time the client comes in for services. You will need to verify the Managed Care Plan your client is currently enrolled in and enter in the proper guarantor for that MCP.

Guarantor Order:

It is important to enter guarantors into Avatar in the correct order.

- 1. Other health care (Kaiser, Blue Cross, Sutter, etc.)
- 2. Medicare
- 3. Managed Care Plan *
- 4. County funds (Match)
 - a. Mental Health providers will use Guarantor 20
 - b. SUPT providers will use Guarantor 18

Each situation is unique to your client. If the client does not have one of the guarantors listed above you will skip that guarantor. If you need more clarification on which guarantors should be entered into Avatar ask your supervisor or contact <u>Avatar-Fiscal@saccounty.net</u>.

* Managed Care Plan Guarantors:

There are guarantors in Avatar that are specific to the Managed Care Plans that are different than the guarantors the treatment program enter. Below is a list of the Managed Care Plan guarantors that are approved for ECM services.

- Managed Care-Aetna (601)
- Managed Care-Anthem (602)
- Managed Care-HealthNet (603)
- Manage Care-Molina (604)

Financial Eligibility Form:

- 1. Open the "Financial Eligibility" form for your client.
- 2. The first page, "Financial Eligibility" will be greyed out. There is a "Coverage Comments" section. This can be used to enter comments whenever you update a client's financial eligibility.





Financial Eligibility Guarantor Selection Customize Plan	Episode Number		Social Security Number	
Policy Number Override Online Documentation	17 Admission Date		Financial Investigation Medicaid	Number
	02/07/2022		Financial Investigation Medicare	Number
	Program		Link To Financial Eligibility From	Another Episode
	APCO-TWC-14th Ave	~) Yes	O No
	Default Information From Different	Episode		
	⊖ Yes	O No	Episode To Link To	
	Episode To Default From			
	Coverage Comments			
				C

3. The second page is where the guarantors are entered into the system. Guarantors are added into a multi-iteration table. In order to enter information for your guarantors click the button for "Add New Item". A green line will appear when the item is added. Do not click multiple times as that will insert blank rows. The system will see this as missing information. If an extra row is added in error, highlight the row and click "Delete Selected Item".

FINANCIAL ELIGIBILITY				C s	ubmit Discard	Add to Favorites
Financial Eligibility Guarantor Selection Customize Plan Policy Number Override	Guarantor Information *					
Online Documentation	Guarantor # No records.	Guarantor Name	Guarantor Plan	Customize Guarantor Plan	Guarantor's Address - Line 1	
		dd New item	Ealit Selected Item		Thilete Scincted Item	

4. Once a new row is added you can fill in the form.

Address Zincodo	
Address - Zipcode	
Guarantor's Address - City	
Oakland	
Guarantor's Address - State	
CALIFORNIA × V	
Guarantor's Phone Number	
800-390-3510	
Effective Date Of Contract *	
01/01/2000	
Expiration Date Of Contract	
	Oakland Guarantor's Address - State CALIFORNIA × ✓ Guarantor's Phone Number 800-390-3510 Effective Date Of Contract * 01/01/2000





- 5. Enter the guarantor or guarantor code under the "Guarantor #" field. If you are unsure of the guarantor code you can run the "Guarantor by Class" report for a list of all guarantors listed in Avatar.
- 6. When the guarantor is added you will receive a pop-up stating the guarantor plan information will default click OK.

Confirm
Selecting This Guarantor Will Over-Write Any Previous Plan Information. The Master Plan Information Will Default.
ок

- 7. The guarantor's information will default into the fields, DO NOT change this information.
- 8. Under "Customize Guarantor Plan" click "No". Later we will show how to customize a guarantor. You will receive a pop-up when clicking "No", click "OK".

?	
	II Delete Any Information Previously Filed omize Plan'.
ок	Cancel

- 9. Under "Eligibility Verified", this should always be "Yes".
- 10. Enter the "Coverage Effective Date", this will be the date of admission or when their coverage started.





Guarantor # *	Guarantor's	
Kaiser Foundation Health (300)	Address - Zipcode	
	94604	
	Guarantor's Address - City	
	Oakland	
	Guarantor's Address - State	
	CALIFORNIA × V	
Guarantor Name	Guarantor's Phone Number	
Kaiser Foundation Health	800-390-3510	
Guarantor Plan *	Effective Date Of Contract *	
(Non-Contract) Commercial × ✓	01/01/2000	
Customize Guarantor Plan *		
◯ Yes	Expiration Date Of Contract	
Guarantor's Address - Line 1		
P.O. Box 12923		
Guarantor's Address - Line 2		

11. The next section will default the client's information from "Update Client Data" if there is missing information, close the form, go to "Update Client Data" and enter the information in there. Re-enter the "Financial Eligibility" form once you have submitted the changes. The defaulted information is based on the question "Client's Relationship To Subscriber" this will default to "Self". If the insurance plan is through a family member change the subscriber information to the family member's information.

Is This A Managed Care Con	ntract		Subscriber's Name *		
	○ Yes ○ No		TEST,LUKAS		
0 183			Subscriber Address - Stre	eet Line 1 *	
			444 Street Name		
Insurance Code/Medicaid Tap	De		Subscriber Address - Stre	eet Line 2	
1					
Eligibility Verified *			Subscriber Address		
			- Zip *		
Yes	○ No		95827		
			Subscriber Address - City	y *	
Coverage Effective Date *			Sacramento		
			Subscriber Address - Cou	unty	
			Select	×	~
			Subscriber Address - Stat	te *	
Coverage Expiration Date			CALIFORNIA	×	~
			Subscriber Phone Number	er	
			555-555-5555		
Client's Relationship To Subsc	riber *		Subscriber's Social Security # *		
Self	× ~				
			Subscriber Sex *		
			○ Female	Male	O Unknown

12. On the next section the only field that needs to be filled out is the "Subscriber Policy #". This field is not marked red and required however it is required for billing. This will be the client's policy number for their insurance or their CIN number for Medi-Cal. This is





not required when entering the county funds guarantor since there will be no subscriber number.

Subscriber's Birth Date	Subscriber Group Name
06/21/1988	
	Subscriber Group #
Subscriber Employee ID #	Subscriber Policy #
	999999990
Subscriber Employer Name	Subscriber MEDS ID#
Subscriber Employer ID Number	
Subscriber Employer 's Add - Street	
Subscriber	
Employer Add - Zip	Subscriber Branch/Service
	Select × v
Subscriber Employer 's Add - City	Subscriber Military Status
	Select × V
Subscriber Employer Add County	

13. On the next section click "Yes" to the two red and required fields as well as the field below it. This allows the billing team to bill the guarantors.

Subscriber Treatment Auth.		Date Benefits Terminated	
⊖ Yes	○ No		
Subscriber Assignment Of Benefits	• _ No	Date Benefits Denied	
Subscriber Release Of Info *	○ No	Denial Code Select × ✓	
Coordination Of Benefits	-	Subscriber's Covered Days *	
Yes Date Of Accident	⊖ No	9999 Number Of Days For Interim Billing	
		Maximum Covered Dollars * 9999999.99	

14. No other fields on the form need to be filled out. Follow steps 4-14 for all other guarantors added for that client. Once completed, all guarantors entered will be listed in the multi-iteration table.





	Add New It	em	Edit Selected Item		Delete Selected Item
	DMH - SD/MC (3)	DMH	1	No	1600 9th Street
	MH County Funds (20)	MH County Funds	24	No	
	Kaiser Foundation Health (300)	Kaiser Foundation Health	3	No	P.O. Box 12923
Online Documentation	Guarantor #	Guarantor Name	Guarantor Plan	Customize Guarantor Plan	Guarantor's Address - Line 1
Policy Number Override					
Customize Plan	Guarantor Information				
Guarantor Selection					

- 15. Go back to the first page of the form "Financial Eligibility".
- 16. The guarantor order will now be red and required. Each guarantor drop-down will list the guarantors you entered. Select each guarantor in the appropriate order based on the guarantor order shown at the beginning of this tip sheet. Click "Submit" to save.

Financial Eligibility	Episode To Default From		
Guarantor Selection		~	
Customize Plan Policy Number Override	Coverage Comments		
			1 2
Online Documentation			
	Clear Previous Guarantor Order	Guarantor #3	
		(20) MH County Funds 🗸 🗸	
	Guarantor #1	Guarantor #4	
	(300) Kaiser Foundation Health 🗸		
	Guarantor #2	Select V	
	(3) DMH 🗸		

Removing a Guarantor:

If a client loses coverage on a particular guarantor you will want to end date the guarantor. It is important to have a record of the previous coverage for billing purposes. The steps below show how to end-date a guarantor.

	Add New It	em	Edit Selected Item		Delete Selected Item
	DMH - SD/MC (3)	DMH	1	No	1600 9th Street
	MH County Funds (20)	MH County Funds	24	No	
	Kaiser Foundation Health (300)	Kaiser Foundation Health	3	No	P.O. Box 12923
Online Documentation	Guarantor #	Guarantor Name	Guarantor Plan	Customize Guarantor Plan	Guarantor's Address - Line 1
Policy Number Override					
Customize Plan	Guarantor Information *				
Financial Eligibility Guarantor Selection					

Warning: Do not delete a guarantor if services have been entered for that guarantor, this can affect your billing. If a guarantor was entered in error, reach out to <u>Avatar-</u> <u>Fiscal@saccounty.net</u> for instruction on how to fix the error.





- 1. Open the "Financial Eligibility" form for the client you are working on.
- 2. Go to the second page of the form, "Guarantor Selection".
- 3. Double click on the guarantor in the multi-iteration table to select it.
- 4. Scroll down to "Coverage Expiration Date". Enter the date the coverage expired.

Eligibility Verified *	0.11	Subscriber Address - Zip *
Yes	◯ No	95827
		Subscriber Address - City *
Coverage Effective Date *		Sacramento
01/01/2022		Subscriber Address - County
		Select × V
		Subscriber Address - State *
Coverage Expiration Date		CALIFORNIA × V
03/31/2022		Subscriber Phone Number
		555-555-5555
Client's Relationship To Subscriber		Subscriber's Social Security # *
Self	× ~	

- 5. Repeat steps 3&4 for each guarantor that has expired.
- 6. Click "Submit" to save.

Customizing a Guarantor:

If a guarantor is end dated but later re-instated you will need to customize the entry. Below are the steps to customize a guarantor.

- 1. Open the "Financial Eligibility" form for the client you are working on.
- 2. Go to the second page of the form, "Guarantor Selection".
- 3. Double click on the guarantor in the multi-iteration table that needs to be customized.
- 4. Under "Customize Guarantor Plan" switch the selection from "No" to "Yes".





5. Scroll down to the "Coverage Expiration Date". You will want to remove the date from this field since their coverage is no longer expired. You will want to save this date since we will later need to tell the system when the coverage previously expired. You can remove the date and write it on a scratch paper or use the shortcut on your keyboard "Crtl" "X" to cut the date and save it.

Coverage Effective Date *]	
01/01/2022				
Coverage Expiration Date				
03/31/2022				Remove this date
Client's Relationship To Subscriber *				
Self	× ~			

- 6. Scroll to the bottom of the page to the "Default Plan Start/End Date" section.
- 7. Enter the new plan start date under the "Default Plan Start Date" field and the date you copied in step #5 on the "Default Plan End Date" field. Click "Yes" on "Create New Levels from Master Record of Benefit Plan" and then the button "Default and Edit Plan Levels".

Default Plan Start Date			
04/01/2022			New plan start date
Default Plan End Date			
Delault Plan End Date			
03/01/2022			
		A	Date copied from coverage expiration date
Create New Levels from Master R	ecord of Benefit Plan		
Yes	() No		
-			
Default and Edit Plan Levels			

8. A table will populate. The table is showing the default start date to each level of the guarantor plan, the end date you indicated (when they lost coverage) and the new start date. Click "Save".





FINANCIAL ELIGIBILITY FORM: TEST,LUKAS (788475565)						
Index	Level Start Date 🗢	Level End Date 🗢				
1	05/01/2009	06/30/2015				
2	07/01/2015	03/01/2022				
3	07/01/2015	03/01/2022				
4	07/01/2015	03/01/2022				
5	07/01/2015	03/01/2022				
6	04/01/2022					
7	04/01/2022					
8	04/01/2022					
9	04/01/2022					
Save	Close/Cancel					

9. A pop-up will appear, click "Yes".

?	Exit Grid?
	All row(s) are valid.
	Yes No

10. Continue steps 3-9 for each guarantor that needs to be customized. Click "Submit" to save.





Diagnosis

Diagnosis Information

- All clients must have an active ICD-10 and DSM V diagnosis in the system that covers the service dates in order to successfully bill for services.
- Once a diagnosis has been saved you are not able to delete that record. You can change the status to Void which will terminate that diagnosis record.
- You can only have one primary diagnosis, but you can have multiple secondary and tertiary diagnosis.

DIAGNOSIS	_				Submit	Discard Ad	d to Favorites
Diagnosis Additional Diagnosis Information	Type Of	f Diagnosis *			Select Episode To Default	Diagnosis Information From	• × ×
Online Documentation	⊖ Adr	mission 🔿 Dis	charge 🔿 Onset	Update			
		Diagnosis *			Select	Default Information From	~
2		Diagnosis *	Select Episode To Default Diagnosis Information From Select Select Select Diagnosis Entry To Default Information From				
			Current Time	Н ♀ М ♀ АМ/РМ ♀			
	Diagnose						
4	Diagnose Index \$	s Ranking \$	Description 🗢	Status 🗢	Estimated Onset Date 🗢	Classification ≑	Resolved
	1	Primary (1)		Active (1)			1
	Nev	v Row Delete	Row				,
				5 Sh	iow Active Only 🖓		
) Yes	○ No	

Diagnosis Form

- 1. Indicate the type of diagnosis this will be. If you choose Admission the date will default to the admission date, this can be changed if needed.
- 2. Enter the date and time of the diagnosis. Keep in mind the date and time of the diagnosis must be before the date and time of any services for that client.
- 3. You are able to default a previous diagnosis if there is one on file for that client. Choose the episode the diagnosis is in and the diagnosis that you would like to default. If there is no diagnosis on file for the client the drop down will be blank.





- 4. The Diagnosis multi-iteration table will display the diagnosis information you enter below. Click New Row to begin. A row can be deleted until the diagnosis has been submitted. Once a diagnosis has been submitted you are not able to delete the row.
- 5. If there is a voided diagnosis on file for that client you can choose the option to only show active diagnosis.

DIAGNOSIS		Submit Discard Add to Favorites
Diagnosis Additional Diagnosis Information	6 Diagnosis Search *	Code Crossmapping
Online Documentation	Status *	Present On Admission Indicator
	7 Active Working Rule-out Resolved Void	Select × v
	 Estimated Onset Date 	 Classification Select x v
		Diagnosing Practitioner * 11
	Resolved Date	
		Remarks
	9 Ranking	C
	Primary O Secondary O Tertiary	
	Bill Order	
	1	

- 6. Enter the diagnosis description or ICD-10 code and click the search button . The more specific the search is the more narrow your search results will be. Make sure the diagnosis you choose includes an ICD-10 and DSM-5 code.
- 7. Your diagnosis will default to Active status. In order to bill for services your diagnosis will have to be in either Active or Working status. If a diagnosis needs to be removed you can change the status to Void.
- 8. The Estimated Onset Date is not required but can be entered. We do not use the Resolved Date, that will be greyed out.
- The Ranking will default to Primary for your first diagnosis, the bill order will show as one. Do not change this information as it can affect your billing. Any diagnosis entered after the Primary can be set as Secondary or Tertiary diagnosis.
- 10. Present on Admission Indicator will default to Yes, that can be changed if needed. Choose the Classification for the diagnosis you've entered.
- 11. Enter the Diagnosing Practitioner.
- 12. Enter any remarks regarding the diagnosis.
- 13. There is an additional page to the Diagnosis form, Additional Diagnosis Information.





	DIAGNOSIS						Submit		Discard	Add to Favorites
13	Diagnosis Additional Diagnosis		Prognosis 🖓			General Medical C	ondition Sum	nany Cod		
	Information Online Documentation	14			ľ	All Clear All Clear Allergies	onation outin		e (00)	*
			Estimated Discha	rge Date		Arterial Sclere	otic Disease			
			Trauma (CSI)		15	Asthma Birth Defects Blind / Visual				
			⊖ Yes	○ No		Substance Abuse	e / Dependenc	e (CSI)		
						○ Yes○ No○ Unknown / N	Not Reported			
						Substance Abuse /	Dependence	Diagnosi	s (CSI)	٩

- 14. The Prognosis and Estimated Discharge Date are not required, however you are able to enter that information.
- 15. The CSI fields are required for Mental Health programs but not required for Alcohol and Drug programs.
- 16. Click Submit to save.

Voiding a Diagnosis

If a diagnosis was entered in error, you are not able to delete the record but you can change the status to Void. Keep in mind, if a diagnosis has been voided, an Active diagnosis still needs to be on file for that client. Make sure to void the diagnosis before entering the new diagnosis.

1. Open the Diagnosis form in Avatar. This will bring you to a pre-display where you are able to choose your episode. Double click on your episode. A second pre-display will show each of the Diagnosis entries entered for that client's episode.





	Opening:	Diagnosis	
Home > Select Client > Select Record >			
 Selected Client : TEST,CLARIC Selected Episode: 5 	E (788475564)		
Select Record			
Date Of Diagnosis	Type Of Diagnosis	Time Of Diagnosis	Primary Diagnosis
05/01/2022	Admission	01:55 PM	(F32.9) Major depressive disorder, single episode, unspecified
	•		
Add Edit	Cancel		

- 2. Click on the diagnosis that needs to be voided or highlight the entry and click on the Edit button.
- 3. Highlight the diagnosis on the multi-iteration table that needs to be voided.
- 4. Change the status from Active to Void

DIAGNOSIS			Submit	Notes	Discard	Add to Favorite
Diagnosis Additional Diagnosis	01:55 PM	Curren	H C M C AM/PM	\$		
nformation	Diagnoses					
Online Documentation	Diagnoses					
	Index \$ Ranking	Description	Status ¢	Estimated Onset Date 💠	Classification 🗢	Resolve
	1	Major depression	Void (5)			
						,
	New Row	Delete Row				
				Show Active Only 🖓		
				Yes	O No	
	v					
	1.24 March 199					
	Diagnosis Search *			Code Crossmapping		
	Diagnosis Search * Major depression		٩		DSM-IV SNOMED	
	Major depression		٩		DSM-IV SNOMED	÷ø
			٩	ICD-9 ICD-10 (170141000	
	Major depression Status * Active	○ Working ○ Rule		ICD-9 ICD-10 (170141000	
	Major depression	○ Working ○ Rule-		ICD-9 ICD-10 I	170141000	





- 5. Click the New Row button to add the new correct diagnosis entry.
- 6. Click Submit to save.
- 7. If a diagnosis has been voided it will show as a 0 diagnosis on the pre-display.





Progress Note Entry

The Progress Note Entry form has two pieces to it. The top portion of the form (steps 1-9), contain the service information. This portion of the form will generate a billable or non-billable service charge. The bottom portion of the form (steps 11-19) is the documentation portion. This portion is where you will document your service activities. For information on the documentation requirements please contact <u>QMInformation@saccounty.net</u>.

This form will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use this form.

PROGRESS NOTE ENTRY			Submit Discard Add to Favorites
Individual Client Progress Notes Progress Note - Billing Information	Progress Note - Billing Information Select Client *	Select Draft Note To Edit	
Clinical Information Add On Group Information	TEST,LUKAS (788475565) 1	Q Select	3 × ~
Do Not Change Below 2	Select Episode *	× V Progress Note For *	Delete Draft Note 10
5	Date Of Service	 Existing Service Independent Note 	Existing Appointment
	Incident Date	Note Addresses Which Existing Select	ng Service/Appointment
	Service Charge Code	6 •	
	L Number Of Clients In Group		
	Practitioner TRAINER,NINE (015252)	Co-Practitioner	
	Practitioner Direct Service Time		
8	Practitioner Documentation Time	Location Select	7
1		Service was Face to Fac	e? *
	Practitioner Travel Time	⊖ Yes ⊖ I	
	Practitioner Total Service Time		

 Open the Progress Note Entry form for the client you are working on. If you select your client prior to opening the form your client's name will populate. Your name will also populate in the Practitioner field. Make sure not to enter anyone into the Co-Practitioner field. If there was a co-practitioner they will have to do their own progress note.





- 2. Select your Episode from the drop down.
- 3. If you have a note in Draft status you can find it in the Select Draft Note To Edit dropdown. If you do not have any notes in Draft there will be nothing in the drop down. If you are creating a new progress note you will not need to select anything from the drop-down.
- 4. Progress Note For is where you select the type of progress note you are entering.
 - a. Existing Service- Used primarily for corrections. This is used if a service charge has been entered and a progress note needs to be attached to the service.
 - b. Independent Note- Used primarily by Sacramento County MHTC. This note will not create a billable or non-billable service.
 - c. Existing Appointment- Used in conjunction with the Avatar Scheduling Calendar. This option will allow you to link a progress note to an appointment. Choose the appointment you want to link from the drop-down below.
 - d. New Service- Most of the time this will be the option chosen. This will generate a new service charge, either billable or non-billable.
- 5. Enter the Date of the service. If Independent Note was chosen you will enter the Incident Date.
- 6. Enter the service code. This is a search field, when the service code is entered you will double click on the service below.

Service Charge Code *	
individual therapy	٩
Results	
Individual Therapy (97010)	
Individual Therapy - In Community (97020)	
Individual Therapy - Telephone (97030)	
LOCKOUT - INDIVIDUAL THERAPY (LOCK06)	
₩ 4 1 ▶ ₩	
LOCKOUT - INDIVIDUAL THERAPY (LOCK06)	

- 7. Select the Location of the service.
- 8. Enter the Direct Service Time, Documentation Time, and Travel Time. When you tab through the sections it will calculate your Total Service Time at the bottom. Make sure not to change the Total Service Time.
- 9. Indicate whether the service was Face to Face. This means the clinician was face to face with the client, not with a family member or caregiver. This option would be marked Yes if the clinician chose Telehealth as the location.
- 10. If a draft progress note needs to be deleted you are able to delete the note. Once the note has been finalized you are no longer able to delete the note. There are two representatives from each agency with the permissions to void progress notes. If a finalized progress note needs to be voided you will need to contact that person at your agency to void the note for you.





11. You are able to link the client's client plan to the progress note. Click on the T.P. drop down and choose the treatment plan type. Click on the Select T.P. Item Note Addresses button, an outline of your most current treatment plan will populate. If there is no outline, that is because there is no treatment plan for that episode. Click on the section of the treatment plan that this progress note is addressing. Click Return at the bottom of the page to get back to the progress note. If the wrong section is chosen you can click on the Clear T.P. Item Text button.



12. Choose your Note Type from the drop-down. If you require a co-signature, the note types will say co-signature next to each note type. If there are no note types in the drop

Netsmart myAvatar[™] NX





down, please have your supervisor contact QM Staff Registration to update your staff registration paperwork.

13. The Notes Field is where you enter your documentation. There are templates available

for certain note types. To access the templates, click on the template icon it to the right of text field, select System Templates, and click on the Template available.

Injection Note	Sy	stem Templates	
Case Management - General	Us		
MELH Psychiatric Follow up	W	dget Templates	
CASE MANAGEMENT CASE COORDINA		Integrated Dual Diagnos Integrated Services for I	
CASE MANAGEMENT LINKAGE AND RE		Integrated Services for I	
CLINICAL INTRODUCTORY NOTE		Medication Management	nt
COLLATERAL		Multisystemic Therapy New Generation Medica	tions
CRISIS INTERVENTION		Peer and/or Family Deliv	vered Servic
ICC INTENSIVE CARE COORDINATION		Psychoeducation Supportive Education	
ICC-CFT INTENSIVE CARE COORDINATI		Supportive Employment	
INDIVIDUAL THERAPY		Supportive Housing	
REHABILITATION		Additional SS/EBP	
TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT		Select	
SUPT TIME TRACKING			

- 14. Check with your agency to find out which EBP's you should be using. Each agency has specific EBP's that they use, make sure you are selecting something appropriate to your agency. If no EBP's were used check the box for Unknown. This field is required for state reporting.
- 15. Choose the language the service was provided in and indicate whether there was an interpreter used.
- 16. These EBP's are Sacramento County specific, this does not get reported to the state and therefore is not a required field. Your agency may however collect this data, make sure to check with your agency to find out which EBP's you should be using. Each agency has specific EBP's that they use, make sure you are selecting something appropriate to your agency.
- 17. Mark any referrals (if applicable) you may have made to your client that pertain to this progress note.
- 18. The Workflow Control is where you are able to save your work. Your work will not be saved until you click the File Note button. You will have to save your work in either Draft or Final Status. Draft status means you are still working on the note and will need to come back to it. Final status means you have completed the note, if you require a co-signer by choosing Final you are sending the note to your supervisor. If you do not require a co-signer the note will be finalized and no longer editable.





🗸 Add On			
Add-On Service Select × ✓ 19			
Add-On Duration			
Save Add-On Service			
alterade on service		Add-On Service Notes	
Selected Add-On Services			∎ ⊘
	ľ		
	1.		
Select Add-On Service Entry to Edit/Remove			
Select Remove Add-On Service			

19. Certain service codes allow for add-on services. If the service code you are using allows for an add-on these fields (or parts of these fields) will become enabled. Make sure you are following documentation guidelines when using add-ons. For any questions on when it is appropriate to use an add-on code please contact <u>QMInformation@saccounty.net</u>.

Accessing a Draft Progress Note

There are several ways to access a progress note that was filed as a draft. Below are three different ways to access a progress note saved in draft.

My To Do's Widget

The **My To Do's widget** is located on your myDay view. It will list any items you either need to review or have been left in draft status.

1. To access a note in draft, click on the Additional ToDos button.

	MY TO DO'S	C
<	Additional ToDos	





2. A new window will open and display a list of your ToDos. Clicking on the form name will take you back to the draft item.

TO DO'S Sarah Saldivar (saldivars17)	(Change) What needs my attention?
Additional ToDos	
LUKAS TEST (7884755 (3) Progress Note Entry Sarah Saldivar 04/11/2022	
Review To Do Item Progress Note Entry	

3. Your ToDos can also be accessed through the My Activity section, selecting the ToDos tab. Clicking on the form name will take you back to the draft item.

[⊂] myAvatar [∞] NX	myDay	CAREQUALITY	Client Clinical	Client Admin	Client Medical	SUPT Clinical	Client Financial) (Customiz		• ≡ 1	-
			(8)	Welcome, S Make Every Da	arah Saldiva Ny Matter	r			-	TO DC	S		Ē	2
	What ca	n I help you find? lient Search							^		ogress Not Sarah Salo Review T Progress <i>IKAS TEST</i> ent Plan	e Entry livar 🗎 o Do Item Note Entr (788475: livar 🛗	565) () 🗭 04/14/2022	
QUICK ACTIONS	ď	MY TO DO'S			Time	ALENDAR -Slot Duration: 30 > today		week day	Z C		Client Pla	_		-
MY PENDING N PATID 788475664	Name		pisode NoteDa 2022-0:				Thursday							





Client's Dashboard

Open the client's dashboard and locate the Client Document widget on the left-hand side. Find the note you need to edit, click on the row to highlight it and click the Open button on the bottom of the widget.

Routed S	Scanned	PM Forms	CWS Fo	orms Pi	rogress Not	es	
Form Description		Date 📤		Service Code ≑			or Workflo
ALL 🗸	A ~	A ~	A 🗸	A ~	A ~	A ~	A ~
Progress Note Entry	Discharge	17 (APCC- TWC- 14th Ave)	04/11/202	Group Session	APCC- TWC- 14th Ave	Sarah Saldivar	Draft
Progress Note Entry	Group Note	17 (APCC- TWC- 14th Ave)	03/30/202	Group Therapy	APCC- TWC- 14th Ave	Sarah Saldivar	Final
Progress Note Entry	Standard	17 (APCC- TWC- 14th	03/30/202	Assessme - without medical services	APCC- TWC- 14th Ave	Sarah Saldivar	Final

Blank Progress Note Entry Form

From the myDay view open the **Progress Note Entry** form. You can highlight your client prior to open it specifically for that client or enter in the client's information once the form has been opened. Select the appropriate episode on the Episode drop-down. Click on the Select Draft Note To Edit drop-down. Select the draft note you want to edit.

✓ Progress Note - Billing Information			
Select Client *	Select Draft Note To Edit		
TEST,LUKAS (788475565)	Select		× ~
Select Episode *		Delete Draft Note	
Episode # 17 Admit : 02/07/2022 Discharge : None Program : APCC-TWCM4 ~	Progress Note For *		
Date Of Service	 Existing Service Independent Note 	 Existing Appointment New Service 	
Incident Date			





Append Progress Notes

Once a note has been finalized you cannot edit the note, however in certain circumstances you can append a progress note. You cannot change the content of the original note, you can only add additional information. In order to append a progress note it has to be within 45 days of the note and you are only able to append a note if you do not require a co-signature for progress notes. You can access **Append Progress Note** by opening the **Append Progress Note** form.

This form will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use this form.

APPEND PROGRESS NOTE	5		Submit	Discard Add to Favorites
Append Progress Notes	~			
Online Documentation	Note Type * Select	× v		
	List of Notes * Select	× v		
	Append Notes Report Original and Appended Notes			P 3
				2

1. Locate the note you wish to append. You will locate the note by choosing the note type and then find your note in the list of Notes drop-down. Click on the note that needs to be appended.

Note Type *		
Standard ×	1	~
List of Notes *		
Select ×	1	~
	Q]
1 - Date of note (original): 02/10/2022 Time of note (last updated): 08:28 AM Written by: Sarah Saldivar	ľ	•
2 - Date of note (original): 02/25/2022 Time of note (last updated): 09:54 AM Written by: Sarah Saldivar		
3 - Date of note (original): 03/03/2022 Time of note (last updated): 09:02 AM Written by: Sarah Saldivar	l	
4 - Date of note (original): 03/03/2022 Time of note (last updated): 09:23 AM Written by: Sarah Saldivar		•





2. The original content of the note will populate below. This cannot be edited. Below the original note there will be a section for you to add new comments. Add your comments and click Submit to save.

APPEND PROGRESS NOTES			Submit	Discard
Append Progress Notes Online Documentation	Language in which service was provided: English Was Interpreter Used?: No Service Program: APCC-TWC-14th Ave (34CNPZ) Selected Add-On Services: Add On - Interactive Complexity (90785) Duration: Notes:			
c	New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Note *	_		► //
	New commens here			C





Documentation for Shared Clients

This form will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use this form.

This form is for the sharing of Progress Notes and Mobile Assessments from one program to another. You will be able to view in a report the information that is selected. ECM Providers will be able to access Outpatient documentation by using this form. The client must already be admitted into the ECM episode prior to launching the **Documentation for Shared Clients** form.

			C	Make Every Day Matter			
Q	documen	nentation for shared clients					
	Advanced Cli	anced Client Search					
	ſ	H	ere is what I found	d: 3			
	All 1 Clients 0 Staff 0 Forms 1						
			Forms				
	Undock	Name	Menu O	Option			
_	2	Documentation for Shared Clients	/ Avata	r CWS / Progress Notes			
QUICK ACTIONS		0			Y		

From the "What can I help you find?" Search box type in "Documentation for Shared Clients"

If there is already a saved record you will come to a pre-display and from there you will select "Add". If there are no previous records, you will go directly into the form.





Madison (406)		
1adison (406)		
Program Category	End Date	Allow This Program to See Documentation
Associated Program for Released Info		APSS-SAC-EDAPT
Trad		
		Associated Program for Released Info

Once in the form you will need to select all of the options to narrow the search results.

nentation for Shared	Select Client *	Search Notes To Date * 6
	Тезт,веттү (788475799)	0 9/06/2022
		Note Status * 7
	Visible Episodes *	All Clear
	2 Episode # 4 Admit: 09/06/2022 Discharge: NONE Program: ZZ_E04M	✓ Draft
		✓ Final
	Selected Program *	
	3 ZZ_ECM_ACAC_Franklin Blvd ×	×
	Episodes (Including Released) *	
	All Clear	Note Type * 8
	ZZ_ACAC_RcvSvcs_Youth_Franklin (Episode:2)	All Clear
	ZZ_ECM_ACAC_Franklin Blvd (Episode:4)	MHTC Clinician
		Access Team Progress Note
		Activities (Co-Sig Required)
		Activities
	Search Notes From Date *	Clinician Treatment Summary
	06/08/2022	
		Word or phrase to search for (press ENTER to search): * 10

- 1. Enter the Shared Client by searching via name, Avatar ID, Date of birth, etc
- 2. Select the open ECM episode.
- 3. Select your ECM program.
- 4. Click on the boxes next to the episodes you would like to view documentation from. All ECM episodes will have ECM in the beginning.
- 5. Enter the start date for timeframe you are searching for
- 6. Enter the date you would like to end the search.





- 7. Select whether you would like to see notes in Draft Status, Final Status or both.
- 8. Here you can select which note type(s) you would like to view. To select all note types, click the "All" button. All note types will then be selected.
- 9. Enter the name of a specific staff member, if you leave this field blank it will search for all staff.
- 10. Hit the "space bar" then the "enter" keys on your keyboard to search for all Progress Notes/Mobile assessments. You can also enter a specific word or key phrase to search for.

OCUMENTATION FOR SHARED CLIENTS	Process Discard	Add to Favorites
locumentation for Shared		
lients		
Progress Notes *		
<u>All Clear</u>		
2022-09-05 - Standard (Co-Sig Required) - TRAINER,NINE (This		m)
2022-09-05 - Standard - TRAINER,NINE (This is a draft note for E		
2022-09-06 - Standard - TRAINER,NINE (Finalized Case Manage	ment Note for Betty Test)	
Mobile Assessment to Include (not required)		
Select × v	·	





Problem List

Problem List Information:

As part of the updates to the California Medi-Cal system CalAIM initiative, Sacramento County Behavioral Health Services is moving forward with implementing The Problem List effective August 1, 2022. The **Problem List** will correlate with the Diagnosis. The Diagnosis Entry would still need to be completed as that ties to claiming. There are some services that have a mandate for treatment plans (i.e., federal or payer associated requirements); however, this may replace a Client Plan in some instances. For questions on documentation requirements for this form please contact <u>QMInformation@saccounty.net</u>.

This form will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use this form.

	SAC MH PROBLEM LIST		Submit	Discard	Add to Favorites
3	General Problem List	v			
-	Problems	Initiation Date *			
	Closure				
		General Comments			
				li Z	
		2		ľ	

Problem List Form

The name of the Problem List form is different depending on if you are a MH or SUPT provider

- a. SUPT Providers will launch the Problem List via the SAC SUPT Problem List form
- b. Mental Health Providers will launch via the SAC MH Problem List form
- 1. Enter the Initiation Date for the Problem List
- 2. Enter any general comments in this field.
- 3. This will take you to an additional page where you will enter the specific Problems for your client.





SAC MH PROBLEM	LIST			Submit Discard	Add to Favorites
General	✓ Problems				
Problem List Problems Closure	MH Problem List Table *				
	Date Identified	Problem	Closed Date	Staff Closing	
	No records.				
	4. Add Nev	/ Item	Edit Selected Item	Delete Selected Item	

4. The Problem List multi-iteration table will display the problem information you enter below. Click Add New Item to begin. A row can be deleted until the diagnosis has been submitted. Do not delete a problem that has been resolved or closed, only one that has been entered in error.

5 User Added By Sarah Saldivar (saldivars17) 7 Problem * Depression 9	Constant Staff Identifying * TRAINER,NINE (015252) Date Identified * 09/08/2022	
✓ Closure 10	Staff Closing	

- 5. This will automatically populate with the name of the user who has added the problem
- 6. Enter the name of the staff that has identified the problem
- 7. Enter the diagnosis description or ICD-10 code and click the search button . The more specific the search is the more narrow your search results will be. Make sure the diagnosis you choose includes an ICD-10 and DSM-5 code.
- 8. Enter the date the problem was identified.
- 9. Any additional comments about this problem can be identified in this field.
- 10. If the problem has been closed, select a previous entered problem in the mutli-iteration table in section 4 and click "Edit Selected Item", this will enable you to enter the Closure Date in this field.
- 11. Enter the name of the staff who is closing out this problem item.
- 12. You can add additional problems by repeating steps 4-11
- 13. Once you have finished, click Submit at the top of the form.




Client Plan

This guide is designed to be a tool to help users navigate through the newly designed **Client Plan** form in Avatar. For any questions regarding documentation requirements when filling out this form please contact <u>QMInformation@saccounty.net</u>.

This form will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use this form.

CLIENT PLAN					Submit	Discard	Add to Favorites
Client Plan Plan Participants Signatures	Plan Date *			Last Updated			
Online Documentation			• D C :			a 🖉	D (C) ‡
	Plan Name *			Last Updated By			
	Plan End Date		• • • • •	Next Review Date			D () :
	Plan Type *			Treatment Plan Status	•		
	Select	* ~		O Draft Final	O Pending Approval		
				Launch Plan			
	V Plan Participants						

- 1. Open the **Client Plan** form
- 2. Enter your Plan Date. Once you enter in a plan date the End Date and Next Review Date will automatically populate. The Plan End Date will default to one year from your Plan Date and the Next Review Date will default to 45 days before the Plan End Date.
- 3. Enter a Plan Name and choose a plan type.
- 4. Choose your Treatment Plan Status. This should remain in Draft until it is completed, then it can be switched to Final or Pending Approval if you require a Co-signature.
- 5. Click on the Launch Plan button. Steps 1-4 must be completed before you are able to choose Launch Plan.





CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST, LENORE (7884755	547)					
Filters	A Client Plan: LENORE TEST					
Age Group Gender Selected Programs						
Search						
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans		\frown				
	Wrap Text	Add New Problem	Annen Cost) (Anne Charles)	Add New Volumention	Delete Solocted from	
					Return to Plan	Return to Home View

6. Click on Add New Problem

Nursing Care Plans Wrap Test Wrap Test Add Inver Gold Add New Gold Add New Gold Add New Intervention Deter Select at rom Select Problem Date of Onset Date of Onset Date of	CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST,LEP	IORE (768475547)	
Seich Housing Care Plans Wap Text Wap Text Mark Mark Mark Cost Add New Cost Add	Age Group		
Seich Housing Eller Plans Wrap Text Kurning Eller Plans Wrap Text Kurling Eller Plans Wrap Text Kurling Eller Plans Wrap Text Kurling Eller Plans Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Eller Kurling Elle	Gender		
Hooling Date of Oriset Select a value Date of Oriset Select a value Image Date of Oriset Select a value Image Date of Oriset Select a value Image Date of Oriset			
• Housing Care Plans • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Wata Text • Mussing Care Plans • Mussing Care Plans • Mussing Care Plans • Mussing Care Plans • Mussing C			
Wap Text Add New Goal Add New Objective Add New Intervention Deted & Selected Item Select A value Status (SNOMED ICD) Date of Onset Status (SNOMED ICD) Select a value	Housing Plan Library		
Select Problem To Edit	 Nursing Care Plans 		
Select Problem To Edit		Wrap Text Add Iver Bookers Add Iver Cost Add Iver Oble	then Add Meas Intersection Policita Salacted Here
Select a value Select a value Select a value Other Date of Onset Problem Date Opened Status Status Status			Add New Inter Vendor Casece Structed Ren
SNOMED ICD Other Conset Date of Onset Problem Date Opened Status Status			100
Date of Onset Status (SNOMED ICD) Image: Status Control of		Select a value	v
Date of Onset Status (SNOMED ICD) Problem Date Opened Status - Status		SNOMED ICD Other	
Date of Onset Status (SNOMED ICD) Problem Date Opened Status - Status		Q	0
Problem Date Opened Status			0
Problem Date Opened Status			7.00.00.00.00
Problem Date Opened Status			NOMED ICD)
Date Opened Status		Select	a value 😽
Date Opened Status		Problem	
Date Opened Status			0
Date Opened Status			
Solver a Conc. Solver a torest Conc.		Date Opened Status	
			Return to Plan Return to Home View

7. The Select Problem to Edit drop-down will be blank unless a problem was added in the CORE assessment. If you are choosing an existing problem select that problem from the drop-down. If it is a new problem select the blank line.





8. Under the SNOMED ICD type in the SNOMED ICD code you are addressing. The field is a look up field so options will populate as you enter in data. For example, if you type "Anxiety" into the field, all codes that include the word Anxiety will populate. The more detailed of a search you enter the more narrow your search results will be. If you type in the ICD 10 code, it will crosswalk to the SNOMED code. Please note once the plan has been submitted in either Draft or Final status the SNOMED code cannot be changed.

iety	(
Results	×
(1001522!!66077) Anxiety with depression (SNOMED-2315	04006)
(10070631!!66077) Tremor, anxiety related (SNOMED-2607	9004)
(10070632!!66077) Anxiety related tremor (SNOMED-26079	9004)
(10071337!!66077) Anxiety with somatization (SNOMED-48	3694002)
(1043912!!66077) Anxiety disorder due to multiple medical (SNOMED-52910006)	problems

- 9. The Date of Onset field is not required, however you are able to enter a date if applicable.
- 10. Under the Problem field address your client's reason for service. Make sure your reason for service meets all documentation requirements per Quality Management.
- 11. Enter the Status of the plan under Status and Status (SNOMED ICD). The Status (SNOMED ICD) has only one choice available, Active status.
- 12. Enter the Date Opened. The Date Due and Date Closed are not required.
- 13. Enter the Staff Responsible, Staff Assigning, and Non-Staff Responsible Party.
- 14. Indicate the Functional Area/Life Domain for this reason for service.
- 15. Enter the Clients Reason for Services in Their Own Words. This field is not marked red and required to save the form, however; it is required per QM's documentation requirements.
- 16. Indicate all Sources of Information that apply for this reason for service.
- 17. Once you have completed this section click on Add New Goal. See screen shot below. It is important that you enter each piece in order. For example, you would want to enter your goal before your objectives and interventions, that way they are linked to the goal.





CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST,LEN	ORE (788475547)		
Filters	Client Plan: LENORE TEST		
Age Group Gender Selected Programs	Problem: Enter reason for services		
arch	a.		
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans			
Azrist Transford Constant			
		ew Goal Add New Objective Add New Intervention Delete	Selected Item
	Select Problem To Edit		
	Select a value		Ŷ
	SNOMED ICD	Other	
	(1001522!!66077) Anxiety with depression (SNOMED-231504006)	0	0
			Ø
	Date of Onset	Status (SNOMED ICD)	
		Active	~
	Problem		
	Enter reason for services		0
	Date Opened	Status	
	-		Return to Plan Return to Home View

- 18. Enter the client's Goal, make sure to follow all documentation guidelines per Quality Management.
- 19. The Date Opened will populate based on what you entered in the previous screen.
- 20. Due Date and Date closed are not required.
- 21. The Staff Assigning will automatically populate to your name. Enter the staff responsible in the Staff Responsible field, this may be you or may be a supervisor.
- 22. Enter the client's Strengths and Barriers to Recovery and Client's Goals in Their Own Words. These fields are not marked red and required to save the form, however; they are required per QM's documentation requirements.





The screen shot below shows the Goal Section. Once you have entered your Goal click on Add New Objective.

CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST, LENORE (7884755	547)			
Filters Age Group Gender Selected Programs Search Q	Client Plan: LENORE TEST L Problem: Enter reason for services Goal O This is where the Goal is written			
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans	✓ Wrap Text 💦	d New Problem 👘 Add New Goal 🔹 Add	New Objective Add New Intervention Delete Set	ected Item
	Goal This is where the Goal is written		7050	0
	Date Opened		Status	
	03/25/2022 👘 🗊 🎔 🗘		In-Progress	*
	Date Due		Date Closed	
	Staff Assigning		Staff Responsible	
	TRAINER,NINE	0		٩
	Predefined No O Yes			
				Return to Plan Return to Home View

- 23. Enter the client's Objective make sure to follow all documentation guidelines per Quality Management.
- 24. The Date, Status, and Staff fields are the same fields that are found in the Goals section.
- 25. Enter the Client's Objectives in their own words. This section is not red and required to save the form, however; it is required per QM's documentation requirements.
- 26. Additional Objectives can be added to your goal. To do this you would click on your Objective in the display above and then click on Add New Objective once you have completed the Interventions for the first Objective.

Filters	A Client Plan: LENORE TEST	
Age Group	 ▼	
Selected Programs	This is where the Goal is written	
Search	・ Objective ・① Objective #1	
	a Intervention	
 Housing Plan Library 	平 Intervention #1 中 Intervention #2	
Nursing Care Plans	于 Intervention #3	
	Virtap Text Add New Problem Add New Soul Add New Objectme Add New Intervention Delete Selected Rem	

- 27. Click Add New Intervention to add an Intervention to your Objective.
- 28. Enter the Intervention make sure to follow all documentation guidelines per Quality Management.





- 29. Indicate the Type of Intervention
- 30. Enter the Duration and Frequency of the Intervention.
- 31. Additional Interventions can be added to your objective. To do this you would click on Add New Intervention once you have completed your first Intervention.
- 32. Additional Goals can be added to your Reasons for Services. After entering the Objective and Intervention you can click on your Reasons for Services at the top of the plan and then click Add New Goal.

CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST, LENORE (7)	8475547}		
Filters . Age Group Group Group Selected Programs Search Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans	• ● Client Plan: LENORE TEST • ● Problem: Enter reason for services. • ● This is where the Goal is written • ● This is where the Goal is written • ● Objective • □ Objective #1 • ■ Intervention #1 ♥ Intervention #2 ♥ Intervention #3		
	Wrap Text Add New Problem Select Problem To Edit Select a value SNOMED ICD (1001522!!66077) Anxiety with depression (SNOMED-231504006)	Add New Corl Add New Objective Add New Intervention Delete	Selected Item

A New Goal section will be added to your Plan. You are able to follow those same steps to add additional Objectives or Interventions.

33. The same process is done if a new reason for service needs to be added. Click on the Client Plan name on the top of your plan and then click Add New Problem.

CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST, LENORE (788475	547)
Filters Age Group Gender Selected Programs Search	Cleant Plans LENORE TEST Caal * Coal * Objective * Objective
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans	Wrap Text Add New Problem Add New Chief and Add New Chief and Add New Chief and Delian Solected Term





34. If at any point a section needs to be removed you can highlight the section above and then click on the Delete Selected Item button. Please note if a section needs to be deleted it has be deleted from the bottom up. For example, if a Goal needs to be deleted you would need to first delete the Intervention, then the Objective, and finally the Goal.

CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST, LENORE (7884755	57)	
Filters Age Group Gender Selected Programs Search Q		
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans		
	Wrop Text Add New Problem Add New Cod Add New Objective Add New Intervention Delete Selected Re	
	Intervention	
1111111	Intervention #1	Ø

35. Each time you add a new item red flags will appear at the top until you have entered all red and required fields for that item.

CLIENT PLAN FORM: TEST,	LENORE (788475547)						
Filters Age Group Gender Selected Programs Search Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans	Q Client Plan: LENORE TEST Problem: Enter reason for Problem: Enter Pr	Goal is written #1 ention #1					
	Wrap Text	Add New Problem Add New	Gaal Add Ne		Add New Intervention	Delete Selected Item	
	Intervention						0
	Date Opened		3	Staff Assigning			
	03/25/2022	•••		TRAINER,NINE			٩
	Staff Responsible		-	Status			
			9	In-progress			~
	Type of Intervention			Frequency of Int	ervention		
	Select a value						

36. Once all of the red and required fields in that section have been completed the red flags will go away.





Filters	Client Plan: LENORE TES T. Problem: Enter reasor				
Age Group	- Goal				
Selected Programs	• • This is where the	e Goal is written			
Search	Objective Objective	ve #1			
	a interve				
	+ 100	ervention #1			
Housing Plan Library Nursing Care Plans		rvention #2			
	Wrap Text	Add New Problem Add New Goal	Add	New Objective. Add New Intervention Delete Selected Item	
	Intervention		31		
	1				0
	Intervention #3				0
	Date Opened			Staff Assigning	
	03/24/2022			TRAINER,NINE	0
	Staff Responsible			Status	
	(9	In-progress	~
	Type of Intervention	\sim		Frequency of Intervention	
	Select a value		~	Weekly	
				Return to Plan	Return to Home View
				Packet in the Party	Netorit to Home Frem

37. Once you have completed your client plan click the Back to Plan Page button on the bottom right of the page. On the Plan Page enter in your Plan Participants.

ient Plan Plan Participants Signatures Iline Documentation	Plan Type * Client Treatment Plan	x ~		Draft Final	 Pending Approval 	
	✓ Plan Participants			Launch Plan		
	Plan Participants Index Role ≎	Staff ID 🗢	Participant Name 🗢	Plan Author 💠	Notification \$	ls a Release on File ≑
	1 New Row Delete	Row				

- 38. Double click on the Role field and choose the participant role.
- 39. Double click on Staff ID and enter the staff ID of the participant if the participant is a staff member or enter last name, first name (no spaces) and tab or hit Enter to populate the field.
- 40. Double click on Participant Name and type in the participants name into the text box. Click Ok. If the participant is a staff member this will automatically populate based on what you entered into Staff ID.





- 41. Double click on the Plan Author field and indicate whether the participant is the plan author by selecting Yes or No.
- 42. Double click on Notification and indicate whether this participant should be notified on the Next Review Date by selecting Yes or No.
- 43. Double click on Is a Release on File and indicate whether a release of information is on file for this participant by selecting Yes or No.
- 44. To add a new participant click New Row below the table.

Client Plan Plan Participants Signatures Client Treatment Plan Online Documentation Image: Client Treatment Plan Image: Plan Participants Image: Plan Participants Image: Plan Participants Image: Plan Participants Index Role 9 Staff ID 9 Participant Name 9 Plan Author 9 Notification 9 Is a Release on File 9 1 Staff Member - Internal III TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y) No (2)	CLIENT PLAN						/ Draft	Submit	Discard	Add to Favorites
Signatures Online Documentation	Client Plan	Plan Typ	e *			Treatment Plan S	tatus *			
Chine Documentation		Client	Treatment Plan	х ү			O Po	anding Approval		
✓ Plan Participants Plan Participants Index Role ≎ Staff ID ≎ Participant Name ≎ Plan Author ≎ Notification ≎ Is a Release on File ≎ 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y) No (2)	Online Documentation					O Final				
Plan Participants Index Role \$ Staff ID \$ Participant Name \$ Plan Author \$ Notification \$ Is a Release on File \$ 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y) No (2)						Launch Plan				
Plan Participants Index Role 9 Staff ID 9 Participant Name 9 Plan Author 9 Notification 9 Is a Release on File 9 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINER/NINE (015252) TRAINER/NINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y) No (2)										
Index Role \$ Staff ID \$ Participant Name \$ Plan Author \$ Notification \$ Is a Release on File \$ 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y) No (2)		🗸 Plan Pa	articipants							
Index Role + Staff ID + Participant Name + Plan Author + Notification + Is a Release on File + 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) No (2)										
Index Role + Staff ID + Participant Name + Plan Author + Notification + Is a Release on File + 1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) No (2)		Dise Dec	the investor							
1 Staff Member - Internal TRAINERNINE (015252) TRAINERNINE Yes (Y) Yes (Y)				Staff ID \$	Participant Name \$	Plan Author	• •	Notification e	Is a Release o	n File 🌣
		1	Staff Member - Internal	TRAINER,NINE (015252)		Yes (Y)		Yes (Y)	No (2)	
						2	1			
New Row Delete Row		N	ew Row Delete Row							

- 45. Scroll down the page and enter the client's Discharge Planning.
- 46. At the very bottom of the page you will sign the plan, and have the client, and caregiver if applicable sign the plan, click on the Signature button to open the signature box. If they are not able to sign the plan choose a reason from the drop-down. If you choose Other, the Reason-Other box will become enabled. The client signatures should be completed after the client plan has been completed.
- 47. The client should be offered a copy of the Client Plan. Indicate the date a copy was offered and indicate whether the client accepted it.





CLIENT PLAN		Draf	Submit	Discard Add to Favorites
Client Plan	✓ Signatures			
Plan Participants Signatures				
Online Documentation	Client/Significant Support Person was offered a copy of the Client Plan * O Would like a copy of the Client Plan O Declines a copy of the Client Plan	Date Plan was Offered *		• • • • • • • •
	Client Signature	Guardian / Caregiver Signatur	re	
	Signature 1	-	Signature 3	
	Reason No Client Signature was Collected	Reason No Caregiver Signature		
	Select × v	Select	* ~	
	Reason - Other	Reason - Other		
	Clinician Signature			
	Signature 2			

- 48. Once the plan has been completed, scroll back up to the top of the page, change the status from Draft to Final. Submit to save.
- 49. If you require a co-signer you will be prompted to Accept and Route your plan once you click Submit. You can review your plan from this screen. If you wish to send it to your supervisor click Accept and Route, if you wish to make any changes click Reject and it will take you back to the Client Plan.







50. A box will appear which will allow you to choose who to route the document to. Click on the Supervisor field and enter your supervisor's last name. Single click on their name on the drop-down.





	Route Do	ocument to		
Supervisor		Team		
trainer		Search here		
Add		Add		
results	×			
Name				
ELEVEN TRAINER (018558)				
FIVE TRAINER (018555)				
FOUR TRAINER (010562)				
NINE TRAINER (015252)				
ONE TRAINER (010559)				
SEVEN TRAINER (018532)				
SIX TRAINER LMFT (013509)		Title	Name	
TEN TRAINER (018557)				
THREE TRAINER (010561)				
TWELVE TRAINER (018533)				
TWO TRAINER (010560)	J			
	Submit	Cancel		
1				

51. Click the Add button below the supervisor's name. This will drop them down to the Approver box. Click Submit to route the document to your supervisor.

Search here Add Add Approver Search here Search here Add	Search here Add Add Approver Search here Add	Supervisor		Team	
Add Add Approver Search here Add	Add Add Add Approver Add Search here Add Add Add	Supervisor			
Add Approver Search here Add	Add Approver Search here Name Add Final Approver Trice Name ELEVEN TRAINER Supporter ELEVEN TRAINER				
Search here	Search here Add Approver Final Approver ELEVEN TRAINER Supporter ELEVEN TRAINER				
Add	Add Approver FinishApprover Tride Name ELEVEN TRAINER	Add Approver			
Add	Add Approver FinishApprover Tride Name ELEVEN TRAINER				
Add	Add Approver Final-Approver Traic Name ELEVEN TRAINER ELEVEN TRAINER				
Add	Add Approver FinishApprover Trule Name ELEVEN TRAINER ELEVEN TRAINER	Soarch horo			
	Approver Final Approver Hile Name ELEVEN TRAINER				
Approver Final Approver Trice Name	Supervisor ELEVEN TRAINER	,			
		Approver	Final Approver	Thic	Name
	(018558)			Supervisor	
(018558)					(018558)
Submit Cancel	Submit Cancel		Submit	Cancel	





CLIENT PLAN REPORT			Process Discard Add to Favorites
Client Plan Report	~		
	Client *		Episode *
	TEST,LUKAS, (788475565)	٩	Episode # 2 Admit: 07/28/2021 Discharge: 08/12/2021 Program: CSH-WRC-Bøw 🗸
			Treatment Plan *
			2021-07-28 - Client Treatment Plan - A new plan - Sarah Saldivar - Final 🛛 🗙 🗸

Client Plan Report

- 52. If your client would like a copy of the Client Plan, you can run the **Client Plan Report** by searching **Client Plan Report** in the What can I help you find? search box.
- 53. Search for the Client.
- 54. Select the episode the Client Plan was entered in.
- 55. Select the Treatment Plan from the drop down, it will display the date, name of the Treatment Plan, author name, and the status of the plan.
- 56. Click Process and the Client Plan Report will run in a new window where it will be available to print or export.





Client Safety Plan

The Client Safety Plan document detailing warning signs for self-harm, coping skills, and prosocial activities that provide healthy alternatives, support people a beneficiary can reach out to for support during crisis, professionals whom the beneficiary can contact when they are in crisis, and ways to make their environment safe.

CLIENT SAFETY PLAN			Submit	Discard Add to Favorites
Safety Plan Warning Signs that I am at risk ** record signs in client's own words'* Strategies Making the Environment Safe Behavioral Health Professionals I can contact during a crisis	Safety Plan Date *			T ()
Signatures	Self-Injury Suicidal Behavior Enhanced Positive Self-Care	Homicidal Ideation Aggressive Behavior Other	Suicidal Ideation	
	Elaborate on 'Other'			li C
				Ø
	Triggers that may lead to increased stress, crisis an	d/or relapse (e.g. people, places, settings, sounds, things, e	tc.)	b 2

Launch by searching for **Client Safety Plan** in the What can I help you find? Search bar.

- 1. Enter the date that the Safety Plan was created
- 2. Select all of the reason(s) for the safety plan in the multi-select field by clicking in the box to the left of each item.
- 3. Complete the rest of the text boxes on this page with the required information.





Signatures	
I am committed to keeping myself safe and working towards wellness. I agree to adj utilize the skills identified in this plan. I will contact all of my supports, including u	
Client Signature	Filing Status *
	 Draft Pending Approval
Get Signature	
Staff Signature	
Get Signature	

- 4. The Client Safety Plan requires signatures from both the client and staff. Click the **Get Signature** button and sign with your computer mouse/touchpad or signature pad.
- 5. Select the filing status and submit the form. If finalized it will take you to the document routing screen.

Client Safety Plan Report

This will generate a report of the Client Safety Plan that can be printed and given to your client.

CLIENT SAFETY PLAN REP	PORT	Process Discard Ad	dd to Favorites
Client Safety Plan Report	~		
	Client *	For Safety Plan *	
	TEST,BETTY (788475799)	2022-09-14 by Sarah Saldivar (Final)	× ~
			Q
		2022-09-14 by Sarah Saldivar (Final)	

- 1. Enter the client's information
- 2. Select the Client Safety Plan you wish to generate a report for.
- 3. Click the Process button and the report will generate in a separate window.





nt Rep	ort		
	Find 🕅 🕞 🍋 1 of 2 🔹 100% 🔹		SAP CRYSTAL REPO
	Main Report		
	Sacramento County DBHS		Final
	Client Safety Plan		
	TEST,BETTY	ID: 788475799	
	Purpose of Plan		_
	Date of Safety Plan: 9/14/2022		
	Reason(s) for Safety Plan: Self-Injury Suicidal Ideation Suicidal Behavior		
	Triggers that may lead to increased stress, crisis, and/or relapse: A list of triggers for the client		
	Warning signs		_
	Thoughts (e.g., "Things will never get better", "That person deserves to dia Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit, sed do eiusmod to aliqua. Ut eAt vero eos et accusamus et iusto odio dignissimos ducimus of atque corrupti quos dolores et quas molestias excepturi sint occaecati cu qui officia deserunt mollitia animi, id est laborum et dolorum fuga. Et haru distinctio. Nam libero tempore, cum soluta nobis est eligendi optio cumqu placeat facere possimus, omnis voluptas assumenda est, omnis dolor rep aut officiis debitis aut rerum necessitatibus saepe eveniet ut et voluptates recusandae. Itaque earum rerum hic tenetur a sapiente delectus, ut aut re consequatur aut perferendis doloribus asperiores repellat."nim ad minim v laboris nisi ut aliquip	empor incididunt ut labore et de jui blanditiis praesentium volup piditate non provident, similique m quidem rerum facilis est et e e nihil impedit quo minus id que jui limpedit quo minus id que jui limpedit quo minus id que i limpedit sub anti et molestiae piciendis voluptatibus maiores a	tatum deleniti e sunt in culpa xpedita od maxime uibusdam et non alias
	Feelings (e.g., sad, angry): atque corrupti quos dolores et quas molestias excepturi sint occaecati cu qui officia deserunt mollitia animi, id est laborum et dolorum fuga. Et haru distinctio.		
	Behaviors (e.g., throwing things, using substances, cutting): At vero eos et accusamus et iusto odio dignissimos ducimus qui blanditiis corrupti quos dolores et quas molestias excepturi sint occaecati cupiditate officia deserunt mollitia animi, id est laborum et dolorum fuga. Et harum o	non provident, similique sunt i	in culpa qui

Example of a Client Safety Plan report





Corrections Process

The Corrections process for ECM programs is currently a work in progress. This training guide will be updated with additional information when it has been received from Sacramento County.

If you have any questions regarding billing in Avatar reach out to the Avatar Billing Team at <u>Avatar-Fiscal@saccounty.net</u>

ECM Pre-Billing Report

The first step in identifying potential issues with your services is to identify any possible errors. Staff can run the ECM Pre-Billing reports to identify errors with a service before they are billed.

• Run the report by searching for ECM PreBilling Report in the What can I help you find? search bar.

	Sacramento County DI ECM PreBilling Report TLCS-HRC-RST-Marconi For Services on or after 7/1/2021					
Name	ID	Ep	Count		Issues	
LCS-HRC-RS	ST-Marconi					
		14	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		9	1		Missing Policy	
		26	1		Missing Policy	
		10	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		5	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		10	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		21	8		Missing Policy	
		5	11	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	
		26	2	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		19	1		Missing Policy	
		11	2	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	
		18	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		21	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		7	1	0	Missing Policy	Mining Direct
		9	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		21	1	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Missing Diagnosis
		36	3	Guar 99999	Missing Policy	Late Diagnosis

This report will show any service that is no claimed and has a balance with one or more of the following issues

- 1. **Guarantor 99999** This indicates there may be an issue with the staff member's practitioner taxonomy/licensing.
- 2. **Missing Policy** The policy number in Financial Eligibility is missing. Resolve this issue by going into the Financial Eligibility form and updating the missing information. **Note:** The policy number for the Managed Care Plan should be the client's Medi-Cal CIN number.
- 3. **Missing or Late Diagnosis** This will indicate there is no diagnosis or the diagnosis entered may not be covering all dates of services.





For additional ECM specific reports please see the Report Inventory report in Avatar. All ECM specific reports will have ECM in the beginning of the report name. Below is a list of the current ECM reports in Avatar NX at the time this guide was created:

ECM and Outreach Counts ReportECM and Outreach Details ReportECM Services by ClientECM Summary of Services YTD

Editing and Deleting Services:

If there is an issue with a service and it needs to be edited or deleted you will have to complete either an ECM Claims Correction spreadsheet or an OCDR spreadsheet depending on the actions required.

ECM Claims Correction Spreadsheet (CCS)- The CCS spreadsheet should be completed and sent to the Avatar Billing team at <u>Avatar-Fiscal@saccounty.net</u> if an **Open** service needs to be **edited** or if a **Claimed** service needs to be **voided**, **replaced**, or **deleted**.

The CCS is located on the Avatar website at <u>https://dhs.saccounty.gov/BHS/Avatar/Pages/GI-</u> <u>Claiming.aspx</u>

OCDR Process- The OCDR spreadsheet is done to delete a service that is in **Open** or **Closed** status. A service may need to be deleted the service is a duplicate, the service was entered in error, or the service is in closed status and cannot be edited. OCDR's are sent to QM for Mental Health programs (<u>OCDR@saccounty.net</u>) or Sacramento County SUPT from SUPT programs (<u>SUPT-OCDR@Saccounty.net</u>).

The OCDR spreadsheet is located on the Avatar website: https://dhs.saccounty.gov/BHS/Avatar/Pages/GI-Claiming.aspx

Orphaned Progress Notes:

This process will only be used by programs that enter documentation in Avatar NX. If your agency uses a different EHR for documentation you will not use

Most services in Avatar are generated by entering a progress note. When a clinician enters a progress note for a client there are two pieces to the form. The top portion of the Progress Note Entry form generates a service charge and the bottom portion of the form is the clinician's documentation for the service.







When a service is removed by going through the OCDR or CCS process that creates an Orphaned Progress Note, the progress note has no services attached to it. In order to fix this a new service needs to be created by using the Client Charge Input form and attached to the progress note using the Attach Individual Notes to Existing Services/Appointments form.

Tools for locating Orphaned Progress Notes Void Note Information Widget

The Void Note Information Widget is located in your Client Notes Console under your My Views.







This widget will show all progress notes for your client. If there is missing service information for the progress note you will know you have an orphaned progress note.

DID NOTE INFO	RMATION				_		
NoteDate	NoteTime	FilingUser	EP BriefDesc	Practitioner	Service	VC/INC Date	EntryDate
2022-06-15	09:22 AM	Stacey Callahan	7 Example #1	TRAINER, OUR		2022-06-10	2022-06-15
2022-06-15	09:26 AM	Stacey Callahan	7 Example #2	TRAINER, OUR		2 22-06-11	
2022-06-15	09:52 AM	Stacey Callahan	7 Example #3	TRAINER,FO IR		022-06-12	2022-06-15
2022-06-15	09:55 AM	Stacey Callahan	7 test	TRAINER.FOUR			2022-06-15
2022-05-25	12:50 PM	Stacey Callahan	7 PARTICIPANTS: COORDINATION ACTIVITIES:	TRAINER.FOUR	93010	2022-05-25	2022-05-25
2022-05-13	10:53 AM	Stacey Callahan	7 Current Medications: 00000 Medication Adheren	TRAINER,FOUR	99211	2022-05-13	2022-05-13
2022-04-12	10:15 AM	Stacey Callahan	7	TRAINER.FOUR	95510	2022-04-11	2022-04-12

No service information

Progress Note Summary Report

Enter the criteria for the note you are looking for. Under "Status" choose "F" for Final and under "Has an associated service?" choose "No". By pulling notes in Final status with no service attached this will show any orphaned notes.

		Process	Discard	Add to Favorites
~				
For Notes Between *	A	nd *		
06/12/2022		06/17/2022		
The following are optional, but will improve performan	ce if used			
If none of these are selected, all notes in your System	Code in the date range above will b	e returned		
Status	Pr	ogram		
F	× ~ /	APCC-TWC-14th Ave		× ~
Practitioner	н	as an associated service?		
		ło		× ~

\bigcirc	Sacramento Co Progress Note For Note Dates Betw For Program 34CNP2	s Summary een 6/12/2022 ar	nd 6/17		hout Services W	/ith a Status of: Fir	al Only		
Na	ime	ID	Ep	Note Date	Note Type	Entered	Service	Service ID	Status
TRAINER,FOU	R (010562) STER,SCARLETT	788475546	7	6/15/2022	Standard	6/15/2022	Unknown		Final





Attaching a Service to an Orphaned Note

- 1. After the incorrect service has been removed by the OCDR or CCS process, open the Client Charge Input form and enter a new service with the correct service information for your client.
- 2. Open the "Attach Individual Notes to Existing Services/Appointments" form.
- 3. Enter the Client ID and episode number to enable the other sections of the form.

ATTACH INDIVIDUAL NOTES TO	D EXISTING SERVICES/APPOINTMENTS	Submit Car	Discard Add to Favorites
Attach Individual Notes To Existing Services/Appointments			A
Online Documentation	Client ID *	Episode Number *	
Online Documentation	TESTER,SCARLETT, (788475546)	Episode # 7 Admit : 07/10/2021 Discharge : None Program : APCC-TWC	-14th Ave × V
		Select Note To Attach	
	Start Date		
	06/10/2022 🛍 🗊 🖤	Link Note To	
		C Appointmenta O Services	
	End Date	Start Date (Appointment/Service)	
		07/10/2021	
	Note Type		
	All I Clear	End Date (Appointment/Service)	
	Clinician Treatment Summary		
	Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required)		
	Diabetes Education		
	Dietary (Co-Sig Required)	Appointments/Services	
	Dietary	Select	
	Discharge (Co-Sig Required)		
	Discharge		Multi-day top 15 2022
	E Service and the service serv		Wednesday, June 15, 2022

- 4. The Start Date will default to the Admission date. You can change the Start Date and enter an End Date to narrow your search. On the left hand side of the form you are entering information for the orphaned progress note. You can put as much or as little criteria as you choose.
- 5. Once you've entered the date range and/or criteria click on the Select Note to Attach button. A box will populate that shows any orphaned notes that fit your search criteria. Choose the note that needs to be attached to the service. Click OK.

			Select Note To Attach
Client: TEST	TER,SCARLETT	(788475546)	
Episode Numb	per: 7		
Note Date	Note Time	Filing User	Brief Description
06/15/2022	09:22 AM	Stacey Callahan	Example #1
06/15/2022	09:26 AM	Stacey Callahan	Example #2
06/15/2022	09:52 AM	Stacey Callahan	Example #3
06/15/2022	09:55 AM	Stacey Callahan	test

6. There is an option to print the note. You can use this to verify you selected the correct note.





- Choose what you want to link the note to. In most cases you will select Service. Selecting Appointment will link the note to an appointment created in the Scheduling Calendar. Only agencies who use the Avatar Scheduling Calendar would use this option.
- 8. The bottom right-hand section is where you will enter in your service information. The Start Date will default to the admission date. You are able to update the criteria to the date of the service.
- 9. Click on the Appointment/Services drop-down to choose the service you want to link to the progress note. This will be the service you entered into the Client Charge Input form. Click Submit to save.

ttach Individual Notes To Existing ervices/Appointments	Client ID *		Episode Number *		
nline Documentation	TESTER,SCARLETT, (788475546)	9	Episode # 7 Admit : 07/10/2021	Discharge : None Program : APCC-TW	C-14th Ave 🗙 🗸
une cocumentation			Select Note To Attach		
	Start Date		Print Progress Notes		
	06/10/2022	· • • • • • • • •	Link Note To *		
			O Appointments	(Services	
	End Date	(inclusion)	Start Date (Appointment/Service)		
			07/10/2021		
	Note Type All I Clicar		07/10/2021 End Date (Appointment/Service)		
	All <u>Clear</u>				# G Q;
	All Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required)				
	All I Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required) Diabetes Education		End Date (Appointment/Service)		
	All Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required) Diabetes Education Diabetes Education Diabetes Education		End Date (Appointment/Service)		- C C:
	All Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required) Diabetes Education Diabetes Education Diabeters Education		End Date (Appointment/Service)	rvice: Individual Therapy AF	
	All Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required) Diabetes Education Dietary (Co-Sig Required) Discharge (Co-Sig Required)		End Date (Appointment/Service)	rvice: Individual Therapy AF	- C C:
	All Clear Clinician Treatment Summary Diabetes Education (Co-Sig Required) Diabetes Education Diabetes Education Diabeters Education		End Date (Appointment/Service)	rvice: Individual Therapy AF	- C C:

Voiding a Progress Note

There may be times when you do not want to attach a new service to a progress note. If the note was done in error, for the wrong client, or if there are too many documentation errors you may want to void the service and progress note altogether. In this instance you would follow the same OCDR or CCS process, but instead of creating and attaching a new service you will void the progress note.

The permissions to void a progress note will not be given to everyone who attends corrections training. The Authorized Approver at your site will have to specifically request those permissions for your account. Only two representatives at each program will have the ability to void progress notes.

Steps to Voiding a Progress Note:

1. Open the Void Progress Notes form. Enter the client ID and episode number.





- 2. Enter your Note Information. This criteria will help you locate the orphaned progress note. You can enter as much or as little criteria as you choose.
- 3. If the service information is still attached to the note you can enter the service information. If the service has already been deleted you can leave this section blank.

 Estranschaft (1884-15546) Estranschaft (1884-15546) estelementein Tote <				Submit	Discard	Add to Favori
 Estranschaft (1884-15546) Estranschaft (1884-15546) estelementein Tote <	,					
 Estranschaft (1884-15546) Estranschaft (1884-15546) estelementein Tote <	Client ID *		Episode Number *			
t bate //10/2022 Def bate Def	TESTER,SCARLETT, (788475546)					× ~
t bate VIII 2022						
t bate UTU2 2022						
t bate UTU2 2022						
All Case All Case Case Ed Date Ed Date Data Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Data Ed Date Data Ed Date Data Ed Date Data Ed Date Ed Date Data Ed Date Ed Date Data Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Ed Date Data Ed Date Ed Date E	Note Information					
WHTC Restraint Dobief Image: Constraint Dobi	Start Date					
Image: Service Code Code Image: Service C	06/10/2022					
End Date MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief MrTC Schutzno Dezkief Service Code MrTC Schutzno Dezkief <			MHTC Restraint Debrief			
MeTC Shift Change (Co-Sig Required) MeTC Shift Change (Co-Sig Required) MeTC Shift Change (Co-Sig Required) MeTC Shift Change (Co-Sig Required) There Support Standard wice:/Apositiment Information e of Service Duration Service Code	5-10	N-4-				
In MrTC Shift Change In MrTC Worker Admit (Co-Sig Required) In MrTC Worker Admit (Co-Sig Required) In MrTC Worker Admit (Co-Sig Required) In Standard (Co-Sig Requir	End D					
Interface Admit Bendard (Co-Sig Required) Standard Service Duration Progress Note Service Duration Service Code Comparison Service Code Comparison Comparison Service Code Comparison C						
Peer Support Standard (Co-Sig Required) Standard (Co-Sig R						
□ Standard (Co-Sig Required) ▼ Standard						
Image: Standard Image: Standard						
e Of Service Duration Service Code						-
e Of Service Duration Service Code						
Image: Contract of the Angenes Note	Service/Appointment Information					
Id Progress Note Select Note 16 Void Progress Nate	Date Of Service	Duration	Service Code			
Select Nate To Valid The Program Mate						٩
Select Nate To Valid The Program Mate						
Select Nate To Valid The Program Mate						
son For Voiding The Note	Void Progress Note					
son For Voiding The Note						
ker v						
	Select	~				
	Comments					
				8		
				6		

4. Click the Select Note To Void button. A box will populate that includes all progress notes (orphaned and non-orphaned notes) that fits the criteria you entered above. Choose the note that needs to be voided. You can figure out which note needs to be voided by viewing the details of each note. In the example below, the last note has no service information below it. That would be the note that needs to be voided. Click on your note then click OK.





- 5. Once a note is chosen the bottom Void Progress Note portion of the form will become enabled. You can click the Print Progress Note button to view the note details and print the note for your records.
- Choose your reason for voiding the note from the drop down. Below that enter your comments. Each agency may require different information in the Comments section. Click Submit to save.

oid Progress Note		
Select Note To Void Print Progress	Note	
ason For Voiding The Note *		
Select	× ×	
	Q	
Duplicate Note		
ncorrect Client		
ncorrect Episode		
ncorrect Information-Typing Error		

Netsmart

myAvatar[™] NX





7. You can run the "Progress Notes Voided Report" to view any progress notes that have been voided at your agency.

Sacramento County DBHS Progress Notes Voided Report							
lotes Voided For El Hogar-RST-Bercut Between 6/1/2020 and 8/18/2020							
Driginal Entr	ry By Staff:	Stacey Callahan					
Driginal Entr Date of Note	y By Staff: Note Time	Stacey Callahan Note Type	Voided By	Reason for Void			
-		-	Voided By Stacey Callahan	Reason for Void			
Date of Note	Note Time	Note Type					





Discharge

Discharge Information

- When a client no longer requires ECM services or they lose ECM/Medi-Cal eligibility they will need to be discharged from the ECM program.
- Make sure that all of the required elements are completed before completing the discharge form including Discharge Diagnosis, etc.
- If a discharge has been completed in error, you will need to send a request to your Contract Monitor to back out the discharge.

DISCHARGE			Submit	Discard	Add to Favorites
Discharge Demographics 6 CSI OSHPD	► Episode Number		Discharge Remarks/Comments		B
Online Documentation	4				ľ
	Date Of Discharge * 09/14/2022				
	1				4
	Discharge Time * 10:50 AM	м 🗘 АМ/РМ 🗘			
	Discharge Day Of Week				
	WEDNESDAY		Hospital Discharge Instructions		8
	Length Of Stay 8				ľ
	7 Type Of Discharge *				
	ECM-Member is unresponsive or lost to follow-up contact	× ~			
	3 Discharge Practitioner * NINE TRAINER (015252)	٩	Discharge Client Living Arrangement Homeless, No Identifiable Residence 🗸 🗸	5	

Open the Discharge form and enter the client's information. In the pre-display, select the ECM program you are discharging.

- 1. Enter the date and time of the discharge.
- 2. Select the type of discharge from the drop down menu. There are ECM specific discharge types, choose the appropriate option from that list. These options begin with "ECM"

ECM-Member has met their ECM Care Plan goals ECM-Member is ready to transition to a lower level of care ECM-Member is unresponsive or lost to follow-up contact ECM-Member wishes to discontinue services

- 3. Enter in the name of the discharging practitioner.
- 4. Indicate any discharge remarks/comments in the text boxes.
- 5. Select the client's current living arrangement from the drop down menu.





- 6. Go to the Demographics page and update any information for your client that requires updating.
- 7. You will not need to enter data in the CSI or OSHPD pages.
- 8. Click the submit button to discharge your client from your program.